
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor
Monday, October 3, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 

Page 1 of 1 

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Invocation and Pledge
4. Announcements
5. Approval of the Agenda
6. Public Input
7. Consent Agenda

a. Approve Minutes
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held September 19, 2022
• Executive Session held September 19, 2022

b. Approve Use of Memorial Gardens for 2nd Annual Ghost Walk
8. Introduce the Downtown Development Manager – Amanda Edmondson

PUBLIC HEARING 
9. ANX-C2200122: Jim Chapman Communities, Inc has petitioned to annex into the city limits of

Dawsonville the 3-acre tract known as TMP 093 046 (tract 2), located at 922 Hwy 53 East, with
a County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub-Rural) to City Zoning R6 (Multiple-Family District).
Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on September 12, 2022, and City Council on
October 3, 2022.  City Council for a decision on October 17, 2022.

10. ZA-C2200123: Jim Chapman Communities, Inc has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 093
043, 093 044, and 093 047; Located at 2120 Perimeter Road and 922 Hwy 53 East from R1
(Restricted Single-Family Residential District) to R6 (Multiple-Family Residential District).  Public
Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on September 12, 2022, and City Council October 3, 2022.
City Council for a decision on October 17, 2022.

BUSINESS 
11. Request for Refund of Building Permit Fee
12. Red Hawk Subdivision Road Dedication Request
13. Update Appraisal for Elliott Field Airport Property
14. Award Bids – Pickleball and Basketball Courts for Main Street Park

 EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED   
 ADJOURNMENT 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, October 17, 2022 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk at 
Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/03/2022     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held September 19, 2022 
• Executive Session held September 19, 2022 

b. Approve Use of Memorial Gardens for 2nd Annual Ghost Walk 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/03/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 
• EXECUTIVE MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 

 
 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 19, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk 
Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utilities Operation Manager Jacob Barr, 
Finance Administrator Robin Gazaway and Interim Planning Director Diane Callahan. 

 

Councilmember Illg was not present at the meeting.  
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember French.   
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason reminded citizens the Farmer’s Market is still open on 
Saturdays and the Mountain Moonshine Festival and the Second Annual Ghost Walk will occur 
during the month of October.  

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by J. Walden; 
second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a,b) made by 
M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held August 15, 2022 
• Executive Session held August 15, 2022 

b. Approve Low Income Household Water Assistance Program Agreement 
 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  The Mayor and Council presented Beverly Banister with the August 
2022 Employee of the Month award.  Stan Zaverukha and Steven McNeal received four-year 
service awards and Jacob Barr received an eleven-year service award.   

 

9. PROCLAMATION – CHASE ELLIOTT DAY:  Mayor Eason read the proclamation and presented it 
to Cindy Elliott.  

 

10. STATE RESOLUTION FOR THE 50TH ANNIVERSARY OF BURT’S PUMPKIN FARM:  Motion to 
approve the City’s participation in the State’s Resolution honoring the 50th Anniversary of Burt’s 
Pumpkin Farm made by J. Walden; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

BUSINESS 
 

11. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROADWAY AND DRAINAGE SYSTEMS AMENDMENT:  
Motion to approve amendment to the Standard Specifications for Roadway and Drainage Systems, 
Division III, Section 1.11 Storm Water Infrastructure Inspection as presented made by C. Phillips; 
second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. (Exhibit “A”) 
 

12. IMPACT FEE STUDY AGREEMENT WITH GEORGIA MOUNTAIN REGIONAL COMMISSION:  
Motion to approve the agreement to perform an impact fee study with the Georgia Mountain 
Regional Commission made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in 
favor.  

 

13. SPECIAL EVENT WITH ALCOHOL – BOOTLEGGERS BAR & GRILL, OCTOBER 21 – 23, 2022:  
Motion to approve the special event permit with alcohol as presented made by C. Phillips; second 
by M. French.  The City Council stated the area being used for alcohol will need to be completely 
fenced in.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

14. FUNDING FOR DEVELOPMENT OF WELL #112:  Motion to approve pursuing the Population 
Grant from the Governor’s Office of Planning and Budget for Water for the development of Well 
#112 made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 19, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 2 
 

15. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT AMENDMENT REGARDING A TRAIL TO THE 
LIBRARY:  Motion to approve the amendment to the IGA made by C. Phillips; second by J. 
Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

WORK SESSION 
 

16. 2023 SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE RATE AND ESTABLISH SERVICE CHARGE:  
Motion to approve the 2023 Solid Waste Collection Service Rate from Red Oak Sanitation of $15.90 
per can, per month and approve the service charge at cost plus $4.00 for a total of $19.90 per can, 
per month made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

17. 2023 MEETING CALENDAR REVIEW:  Motion to approve the 2023 Meeting Calendar as 
presented made by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

18. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Bolz provided his report in the agenda packet and 
reported the leak adjustment for the previous month was $651.33. 

 

19. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Finance Director Gazaway presented the 
financial reports representing fund balances and activity provided through August 31, 2022.               

    EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

At 5:22 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for potential/pending 
litigation was made by J. Walden; second by C. Phillips. Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

At 5:28 p.m. a motion to close executive session was made by C. Phillips; second by J. Walden.  
Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

Motion to resume regular session was made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. 

 

    ADJOURNMENT: 
 

At 5:30 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by J. Walden; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously. 

 

 Approved this 3rd day of October 2022. 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 





Current Division III section 1.11 Storm water Infrastructure Dedication requirements will be 
eliminated and the following storm water infrastructure inspections will be required.  

Division III section 1.11 Storm Water Infrastructure Inspection. 

1. The owner, developer and or contractor shall provide the City of Dawsonville 24 hour
notification to perform a pre-construction meeting.

2. Owner, developer and or contractor will notify the City of Dawsonville 24 hour to conduct a
visual storm drain inspection of each individual line prior to backfill installation.

3. The required visual inspections will verify foundation stability, depth, slope, type of pipe, class of
pipe, bell to spigot installation, location and manhole structure exterior connection and seal.

4. The City will perform the storm drain inspection within 48-hour.

5. The City will allow a third-party storm drain inspection if one of the two following conditions
apply and receives City approval for the third-party inspection. Condition number one:
Unfavorable weather conditions expected within 48-hour. Condition number two: City
representative can not perform the required inspection within 24 hours.

6. Visual inspection of all storm water infrastructure will be required prior to final plat approval.

7. Visual inspection of all storm water infrastructure will be required prior to bond release and City
dedication.

8. For any infrastructure presented for dedication to the City of Dawsonville which infrastructure
was inspected, if at all, prior to January 1, 2020, video inspection is required before the
infrastructure may be accepted.  For such video inspections:

a. Video inspection will verify the pipe line is clear of debris, obstructions, ponding water,
exposed reinforcing steel, joint offset, joint separation, rips, tears, cracks, holes, deviation
from line and grade, and other anomalies not consistent with properly installed pipe.

b. Any and all matters which need repair as shown on video inspection shall be repaired
before the City will accept dedication.

Exhibit "A"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE USE OF MEMORIAL GARDENS FOR 2ND ANNUAL GHOST WALK 
      
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/03/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL FOR THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM TO UTILIZE 
MEMORIAL GARDENS DURING THEIR 2ND ANNUAL GHOST WALK ON OCTOBER 28TH AND 
29TH FROM 7:00 PM TO 9:00 PM APPROXIMATELY. 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• CITY COUNCIL APPROVED THE USE OF MEMORIAL GARDENS IN 2021 FOR THE 
SAME PURPOSE 

• TOUR INCLUDES THE GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME, OLD DAWSON COUNTY 
JAIL, DAWSON COUNTY’S HISTORIC COURTHOUSE AND MEMORIAL GARDENS. 

• PERMIT HAS BEEN SUBMITTED AND IS IN THE APPROVAL PROCESS. NO ROAD 
CLOSURES ARE NECESSARY AND NO ISSUES ARE EXPECTED FOR FINAL 
APPROVAL.  

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7b     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:        INTRODUCE THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT MANAGER –  

AMANDA EDMONDSON____  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/03/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
      TO INTRODUCE AMANDA EDMONDSON AS THE CITY’S NEW DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 

MANAGER 
 
    
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                       ANX-C2200122 ______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/03/2022   
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: _____General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: PUBLIC HEARING  
 
ANX-C2200122: Jim Chapman Communities, Inc has petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville 
the 3-acre tract known as TMP 093 046 (tract 2), Located at 922 Hwy 53 East, with a County Zoning of RSR 
(Residential Sub-Rural) to City Zoning R6 (Multiple-Family Residential District).  Public Hearing Dates:  
Planning Commission on September 12, 2022, and City Council on October 3, 2022.  City Council for a 
decision on October 17, 2022. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is Post 2 City Council Member in William Illg District. 

2. The subject property adjoins City Zoned R6 District to the South, County RSR District to the East, City 
R1 District to the West and County RSR district to the North. 
 

3. Applicant is requesting to annex three (3) acres. 

4. City water and sewer infrastructure adjoins property. 

5. City water and sewer capacity is available. 

6. Applicant submitted data to the Planning Department for the DRI submission and is currently in the 
review process by GMRC.  Final decision will be delayed until DRI review is completed. 
 

7. Planning Commission denied the request on 09.12.2022. 

8. Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the request no 09.16.2022.  The board voted to send a 
letter objecting the proposed annexation to Mayor and City Council. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS:  
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning_____________________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED BY: Diane Callahan________________________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 



































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                           ZA-C2200123_______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/03/2022    
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: _____General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: PUBLIC HEARING  
 
ZA-C2200123: Jim Chapman Communities, Inc has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 093 043, 093 044, 
and 093 047; Located at 2120 Perimeter Road and 922 Hwy 53 East from R1 (Restricted Single-Family 
Residential District) to R6 (Multiple-Family Residential District).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission 
on September 12, 2022, and City Council October 3, 2022.  City Council for a decision on October 17, 2022. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is in Post 2 City Council Member William Illg District.  

2. Applicant is requesting to rezone property from R1 District (Restricted Single Family Residential 
District) to R6 District (Multiple-Family Residential District). 
 

3. Applicant is requesting to rezone 33.98 acres. 

4. Proposing 195 rental units with a density of 5.74/units per acres. 

5. Proposing minimum 1,000 heated square foot rental units. 
 

6. TMP 093 043 annexed into the city on January 9, 2005.  TMP 093 044 and 093 047 annexed into the 
City September 9, 2013. 
 

7. The subject property adjoins City zoned R6 district to the South, County RSR District to the east, City 
PUD District to the West and City R1 and HB District to the North.  
 

8. 2018 Comprehensive Plan character area proposes mixed/multifamily use. 
 

9. Adjoining Sweetwater Preserve subdivision density 3.11 units per acre. 
 

10. Adjoining Farmington Woods apartment development is 5.98 units per acre. 
 

11. Applicant submitted data to the Planning Department for the DRI submission and is currently in the 
review process by GMRC.  Final decision will be delayed until DRI review is complete.  
 

12. If approved the Planning Department recommends a no access easement adjoining Hwy 53 East and 
Perimeter Road frontage boundary.  
 

13. If approved the Planning Department recommends the installation of sanitary lines and sewer 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 



manholes up to Perimeter Road right-of-way for future sewer outfall service for parcels 093 041, 093 
063 and 093 033. 
 

14. If approved the Planning Department recommends that applicant donate funds for future intersection 
improvements at Perimeter Road and Hwy 9 South.  Funds in the of $1,000.00 per unit shall be  
donated prior to each building permit approval.  Funds shall be eligible for future impact fee credit if 
the City adopts said fees in the future. 
 

15. If approved the Planning Department recommends the applicant donate funds for the future 
intersection improvements at Perimeter Road and Hwy 53 East.  Funds in the amount of $500.00 per 
unit shall be donated prior to each building permit approval.  Funds shall be eligible for future impact 
fee credit if the City adopts said fees in the future.  Condition warranted due to proposed right turn 
movement of 230 vehicles/day is 92 % of 250 vehicles/day threshold.  Study did not include future 
bypass road passenger and truck traffic. 
 

16. If approved the Planning Department recommends the installation of a dedicated left turn lane on 
Perimeter Road and development driveway #1.  Condition warranted due to proposed left turn 
movement of 215 vehicles/day is 86 % of 250 vehicles/day threshold.  Study did not include future 
bypass road passenger and truck traffic.  Sec 109.46 requires lane for safe operations.  
 

17. Planning Commission denied the request on 09.12.2022. 
 

18. Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the request on 09.16.2022.  The board voted to send a 
letter objecting the proposed annexation to Mayor and City Council. 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS:  
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning_____________________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED BY: Diane Callahan________________________________________________________ 



















































































































































































































































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   REQUEST FOR REFUND OF BUILDING PERMIT FEE__________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/03/2022       
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: ____ General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
Request approval from resident Paul Winschuh for refund of building permit fee of $400.00  
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

• Called Dawson County to verify if a permit was needed, they did not check the address to see which jurisdiction property 
was in; and told him that if it was 200 square foot and under a permit was not needed. 

• Mr. Winschuh was in the process of building his shed when he was informed that a permit was needed. 
• A variance for the placement of the shed was approved by Planning Commission on September 12, 2022. 
• The minimum requirement for the square footage of a storage building will be done on the next update of the regulations: 

to 201’ square foot or less will not be required to obtain a permit. 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS:    Approve, Deny or Postpone 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: Diane Callahan        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 







                              
 

 
SUBJECT:     RED HAWK SUBDIVISION ROAD DEDICATION REQUEST 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 10/03/2022     
 
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION: GL ACCOUNT #        

  Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget _____ Capital Budget ____Other ________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund _____General Fund 
 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

REQUEST APPROVAL FOR ACCEPTANCE OF ROADS AND THE RIGHT OF WAY FOR RED 
HAWK RIDGE SUBDIVISION. 
 
 
 

HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

Construction started in 2005 and consists of 184 Single Family Homes. There are 9 roads for 
which they are asking to be accepted into the City:  Red Hawk Drive, Peregrine Lane North, 
Peregrine Lane South, Aplomado Lane East, Aplomado Lane West, Swanson Street, Harrier 
Drive, Kestrel Court West, Kestrel Court East.   
 
 
 

OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

REQUESTED BY: Diane Callahan, Interim Planning Director__ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   12     
 

 

 





























                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   UPDATE APPRAISAL FOR ELLIOTT FIELD AIRPORT PROPERTY 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/03/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO REQUEST APPROVAL FOR AN UPDATED AIRPORT APPRAISAL NOT TO EXCEED $22,000.00 TO 
ASCERTAIN THE CURRENT VALUE OF THE REAL ESTATE AND FACILITIES IN PLACE TO AID 
EFFORTS TO SEEK FUNDING BY GRANT AND OTHER MEANS.  
 
FUNDS WILL MOST LIKELY COME OUT OF GENERAL FUND RESERVES. 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

THE LAST AIRPORT APPRAISAL UPDATE WAS IN 2019. VALUE OF LAND HAS MOST LIKELY 
INCREASED AND THERE ARE MORE HANGARS THAT HAVE BEEN ADDED. 

   
 

 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
     MOTION TO AUTHORIZE STAFF TO PURSUE THE UPDATED APPRAISAL AT A COST NOT TO  

EXCEED $22,000.00. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   AWARD BIDS – PICKLEBALL AND BASKETBALL COURTS FOR MAIN STREET 

PARK 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/03/2022   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO DIRECT STAFF TO MOVE FORWARD WITH ENGINEERING OF 
THE PICKLEBALL AND BASKETBALL COURTS AND TO BID OUT THE GRADING FOR THE 
COURTS AND TO AWARD RFP #2023-03 AND RFP #2023-04 TO SIGNATURE TENNIS 
COURTS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $140,148.00.  THESE FUNDS ARE BUDGETED IN THE FY 
2023 SPLOST VII FUND 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS WERE ADVERTISED AND RETURNED ON 09/01/2022 
• CITY ONLY RECEIVED ONE RESPONSE FOR OPTION #1 TO BID BOTH PICKLEBALL 

COURTS AND BASKETBALL COURTS TOGETHER   
• ENGINEERING FOR BOTH COURTS WILL BE PROVIDED BY CIVIL ENGINEERING 

CONSULTANTS, INC. NOT TO EXCEED $13,500.00 
• GRADING FOR BOTH COURTS WILL NEED TO BE BID OUT; THE COST IS ESTIMATED AT 

$50,000.00 TO GRADE BOTH COURTS 
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 

AWARD RFP TO SIGNATURE TENNIS COURTS, INC.FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF FOUR (4) 
NEW PICKLEBALL COURTS WITH LIGHTING SYSTEM AND CONSTRUCTION OF A 
BASKETBALL COURT WITH FENCING FOR A TOTAL OF $140,148.00 
 

APPROVE DIRECTING STAFF TO MOVE FORWARD WITH ENGINEERING AND BIDDING OUT 
THE GRADING 
 

 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director___ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   14     
 

 

 

SPLOST VII













 

4994 Roswell Road, Suite 18    Marietta, Georgia 30068    (770) 977-5747     www.cec.engineering 

 
 

September 26, 2021 
 
 
Mr. Bob Bolz 
City Manager 
City of Dawsonville 
415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100 
Dawsonville, GA 
 
RE:  Proposal for Main Street Park Improvements – City of Dawsonville, Georgia 
 
Dear Mr. Bolz: 
 
Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc. (CEC) is pleased to offer this Proposal for providing Professional 
Consulting Services for the Main Street Park Improvements.  
 
I am proposing an hourly basis Not-To-Exceed fee of $13,500 to develop the plans and specifications 
for the park improvements.  The improvements will include four pickleball courts and a basketball 
court.  CEC will perform a drone field survey of existing conditions and provide the necessary permit 
coordination required for a land disturbing permit.  
 
Our Scope of Work includes the following: 
 
1. Park Drone Survey – Prepare working base plan drawing including site topography for park 
improvements.  

Fee:  $4,500 Lump Sum 
 
2. Park Improvements Design – Prepare working drawings for park improvements. Provide a 
layout and site grading plans. 

Fee:  $5,000 Lump Sum 
 
3. Land disturbance Permitting and Coordination – The site disturbed acreage is expected to be 
less than an acre but the pickleball courts appear to be within 200ft of state waters.  Submit plans and 
engineering calculations to City of Dawsonville and the NRCS, if required, for review and approval.  
Leg work and meetings with City to get design approved and obtain a Land Disturbance Permit for the 
park improvements. 

Fee:  $2,000 Hourly Not to Exceed 
 

4.  Soils Investigation – To ensure proper subgrade conditions exist a soils investigation is 
recommended.   

Fee:  $2,000 Hourly Not to Exceed 
 



Mr. Bob Bolz 
September 26, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
  

4994 Lower Roswell Road, Suite 18    Marietta, Georgia 30068    (770) 977-5747     www.cec.engineering 
 

You may accept this Proposal by filling out our Agreement for Limited Professional Services and 
signing and dating in the space provided below and returning one copy to me. Please call with any 
questions. 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, Inc. 
 

 
Andrew E. Lovejoy, P.E.                 
President                                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\22097 - CEC Proposals\City of Dawsonville\Bob Bolz - Park Improvements.docx



 

 

CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, INC. 
AGREEMENT FOR LIMITED PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
Project Name:         Main Street Park Improvements  

Project Location:     Main Street, City of Dawsonville, Georgia  

Proposal Date:       September 26, 2021  

Description of Services:    Design Engineering Services for Sidewalk Improvements  

Financial Considerations:  $13,500 Hourly Not-To-Exceed  

FOR PAYMENT OF CHARGES 

Charge Invoice to the Account of: 

Firm:    __________________________________________________________________  

Address:   ________________________________________________________________     

 _______________________________________________________________________  

Attention:   _______________________________________________________________  

Phone:   _____________________________   Fax:   ______________________________  

FOR APPROVAL OF CHARGES 

If the invoice is to be mailed for approval to someone other than the account charged, please indicate in the space below: 

Firm:    __________________________________________________________________  

Address:   ________________________________________________________________     

 _______________________________________________________________________  

Attention:   _______________________________________________________________  

Phone:   _____________________________   Fax:   ______________________________  

This Agreement is subject to the following special provisions:   __________________________________  

 _____________________________________________________________________________  

 _____________________________________________________________________________  
 
This Agreement together with Civil Engineering Consultants’ Standard Contract Conditions constitute the entire 
agreement between Client and Civil Engineering Consultants and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings. 
  

OFFERED BY:                                                                         ACCEPTED BY:   

Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc.                                       Client:               ______________________________ 

Signature:                                                                       Signature:         ______________________________ 

Date:                   September 26, 2022                                Date:                  ______________________________  

Printed Name:   Andrew E. Lovejoy, P.E.                               Printed Name:  ______________________________ 

Title:                   President         Title:                  ______________________________ 



 

 

 

CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, Inc. 
 
 STANDARD CONTRACT CONDITIONS 
 
 
PERSONNEL CHARGES - Compensation for our professional services is based upon and measured 
by the following elements:  the quoted rates include direct salary, payroll taxes, insurance incident to 
employment, holidays, sick leave, vacation, general office overhead and profit. 
 
Time spent in either local or inter-city travel, when travel is in the interest of the work, will be charged 
in accordance with the attached schedule.  When traveling by public carrier, a maximum charge of 
eight (8) hours per day will be made. 
 
Should overtime rates be required, the hourly rates for personnel will be multiplied by 1.30.  Overtime 
is time in excess of eight (8) hours per day and Saturdays, Sundays or holidays.  Overtime will be 
worked only with prior approval. 
 
 
OTHER SERVICES AND SUPPLIES - Charges for services, equipment, and facilities not furnished 
directly by CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, Inc., are to be paid directly to the provider with 
no mark-up by CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, Inc.  Subcontracts paid by CIVIL 
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, Inc. will have a surcharge of 15% added to them.  Reimbursable 
expenses are in addition to Lump Sum Fee proposed for Basic Services and include, but are not limited 
to the following:  long distance telephone calls, courier services, reproduction, postage and handling of 
reports and drawings and specifications. 
 
 
BILLING - Monthly statements will be issued for work completed to date and will be based on the 
Engineer's estimate of the percentage of completion, or the hours worked, depending upon the method 
of contracting.  Payment is expected within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the invoice.  We would add 
1-1/2 percent, per month, to any past due amounts. 
 
 
WARRANTY AND LIABILITY - CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, Inc. warrants that our 
services are performed, within the limits prescribed by the Client, with the usual thoroughness and 
competence of the engineering profession.  No other warranty or representation, either expressed or 
implied, is included or intended in our proposal, contracts, reports or drawings. 
 
For any damage on account of any error, omission, or other professional negligence, our liability will 
be limited to a sum not to exceed $50,000, or our fee, whichever is less.  In the event that the Client 
does not wish to limit our professional liability to this sum, we will increase this limitation to 
$1,000,000 upon the Client's written request, provided that the Client agrees to pay for this increase an 
additional consideration of 15% of our fee. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, Inc. 
 
 STANDARD CONTRACT CONDITIONS 
 
 (Continued) 
 
 
WARRANTY AND LIABILITY - (Continued) 
 
In the event the Client makes a claim against CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, Inc., at law or 
otherwise, for any alleged error, omission or other act arising out of the performance of our 
professional services, and the Client fails to prove such claim, then the Client shall pay all costs 
incurred by CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, Inc. in defending itself against the claim. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, Inc.  
 

2022 FEE SCHEDULE  
 

FOR  
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES  
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES:  
 

            Principal Engineer   $180.00 per hour  
            Senior Design Engineer   $165.00 per hour  
            Project Manager   $165.00 per hour  
            Project Engineer   $125.00 per hour  
 
ENGINEERING DRAFTING:  
 
           Senior CAD Specialist   $90.00 per hour  
           CAD Specialist  $80.00 per hour  
           Intern  $50.00 per hour 
            
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS:  
 
           Senior GIS Analyst   $125.00 per hour  
            
SURVEYING SERVICES:  
 
           Surveyor, RLS   $135.00 per hour  
           Survey Technician   $60.00 per hour  
 
ADMINISTRATIVE:  
 
           Contract Administrator   $80.00 per hour 
           Office Manager   $80.00 per hour 
 
PRINTING:  
 
           Xerox Copies (In House)   $0.25 each  
           Outside Printing & Copying Services   Cost Plus 15% 
  
SUBCONTRACT SERVICES:   Cost Plus 15%  
MILEAGE:   $0.60/mile 
    
  
 

 
 



ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY PRICE AMOUNT

1 Sitework/Grading LS 1 40,000.00$    40,000.00$       

2 Erosion Control  LS 1 10,000.00$    10,000.00$       

MAIN STREET PARK PROJECT COST 50,000.00$       

Estimate 09/26/2022

by Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc.

MAIN STREET PARK IMPROVEMENTS








	1. 10.03.2022 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2. 09.19.2022 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session.DRAFT
	7b. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items GHOST WALK
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items INTRODUCTION
	9. 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AGENDA ANX C220122_JIM CHAPMAN COMMUNITIES
	9. 2. ANX-C2200122
	ANX C2200122.pdf
	09.15.2022 DC BOC ANX-ZA C2200122.pdf

	10. 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AGENDA ZA C220123_JIM CHAPMAN COMMUNITIES
	10. 2. ZAC2200123
	11. 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AGENDA Paul Winschuh
	11. 2. Refund Request_Redacted
	12. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items RED HAWK SUBDIVISION
	12. 2. Red Hawk Road Dedication Req
	14. 2 O Pickleball
	14. 2 Pickleball
	14. 3. Basketball
	14. 4. Bob Bolz - Park Improvements
	14. 5. Main St Park Cost Estimate
	14. 6. Park Improvements
	Sheets and Views
	overall





